SURI & SUDHIR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

P E TOR’ P
To the Members of M/S DOOK TRAVELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/S DOOK TRAVELS PRIVATE

LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the statgment
. of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Cash Flow Statement and Changes in Equity for

the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income),its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opini

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe

. that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the financial statements.

Infor i r than th i n i 2

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

1In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information: we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

alone Financia

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
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' detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application OFf @pptuptie== = = ="~ " 4 maintel . —
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectnyely for ensuring the accuracy aljd
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prepa_ratlop and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assc—_zssing the Compan‘y's ability_to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The management is also responsible for effective implementation of the requirements :
prescribed by Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 i.e., every company vs:ruch uses an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, should use only such accounting software which
has the following features: ;
. Records an audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made; and
« Ensuring that audit trail is not disabled.
. Accounting software may be hosted and maintained in India or outside India whose backup should
be accessible in India at all the times and such backup of accounts should be maintained on servers
physically located in India.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

" misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

g Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
: disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Assess and comment on company’s compliance with implementation Audit trail under Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.




. Evaluate that the company maintain back-up of the DG L R . S i
papers in electronic mode that should be accessible in India at all the times. .5159, the Company create
backup of accounts on servers physically located in India on 2 daily basis. This is as per the amended

Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowlef:lg_eable user Qf t_he
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quahtgtive
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
. evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, We determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, We determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

wmmumwﬁmﬂm
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

give in the "Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility which has been operated from 01% October 2023 to 31% March 2024 for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

¢) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

d) The Standalqne Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other
Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting; and




h)

With respect to the other matters to be includea: In Tne - AUCIt o 8 e e L dae
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section _197 is not
applicable to a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i As per explanation provided by the lawyer and management, no material contingencies are
determined and no accruals are needed to be recorded and disclosed in the financials as on
31st March 2024.
ii.. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as on 31
March 2024.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermedlaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“*Funding parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

V. Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Vi,

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31st March
2024.

For Suri & Sudhir

Firm Regist¥c 0 ar: 000601N

(Partner)

Membership Number: 080338

UDIN: - 24080338BKCWMV8273

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22-05-2024




SURI & SUDHIR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Dook Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we report that

(a)

(c)

(A). The company has maintained Fixed Assets Register updated with proper records
showing particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(B). The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible
assets.

All the assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at
regular intervals according to a regular program of verification which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Since the company is not in the possession of any immovable property hence the
provision of para (i) (c) are not applicable

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(a) As the Company does not possess any Inventory therefore Para (ii) do not apply.

(b)

That the company has not been sanctioned working capital limit from any banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, therefore clause (ii)
(b) is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Dook Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024

iii. The Company has provided loans or advances in _the nature of loans to
subsidiaries and others during the year as per details given below:

Loans Loans
(%) in millions (%)in millions

particulars

Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year: '
- Subsidiaries Nil Nil

- Others 3.00 14.87
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect

of above cases.

- Subsidiaries Nil Nil

- . Others Nil Nil

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, terms and

conditions of the grant of all loans provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest

of the Company. Further, the Company has not given any security and provided guarantee
during the year.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, there is
no stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted
to such companies.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen
due during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the
overdue loans/advances in nature of loan that existed as at the beginning of the year.

(f) The above loan granted by the company are in the nature of loans, which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in
respect of loans, investments made and guarantee provided as applicable.
Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under
section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of security provided by it.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the
maintenance of cost records have not been prescribed for the company by the
Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Dook Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024

vii.

viii.

X,

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof
were outstanding at the year-end for period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount
payable in respect of income tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise
duty, value added tax and cess whichever applicable, which have not been

deposited on account of any disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not taken any loans from any financial institution or bank.
Hence reporting under clause 3(ix) (a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) That no instance or information has come on our records in context to the
Company been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements, company has not raised
any funds on short term basis.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
therefore clause (ix) (e) is not applicable.

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures oOr associate companies
therefore clause (ix)(f) is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, during the year, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment of shares during the year under review and hence
compliance with the provisions of Section 42 of Companies Act 2013 is not
applicable.




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Dook Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024

Xl
(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

(c) That as represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

Xiii. Based on audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and

fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and

explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are

in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.
(a) The company is not required to have an Internal Audit System, therefore clause
(xiv) (a) of the order is not applicable.
(b) Internal audit under Section 138 read with rule 13 of company act is not
applicable to the company therefore clause (xiv) (b) of the order is not
applicable.

xv. Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into non-

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

XVi.

(a) The company is not required to hold Certificate of Registration under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, therefore clause (xvi)(a) is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, therefore clause (xvi)(a) is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, during the year, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence clause (xvi) (c) is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence clause (xvi)(d) is not
applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as
the immediately preceding financi




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Dook Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024

xviil.

X1,

XX,

XXi.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting ‘the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

As the companies do not meet any of the conditions specified under Section 135
of the Companies Act 2013, hence clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
audit of standalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no
comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For Suri & Sudhir

(Partner) i

>

Membership Nh‘mbé}:‘;-’ﬁhons
UDIN: - 24080338BKCWMV8273

Place: New Delhi
Date: 22-05-2024




SURI & SUDHIR

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Dook
Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dook Travels
Private Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing

- prescribedunderSection143(10)0ftheCompaniesAct,2013,totheextentapplicabletoanauditoﬁnt
ernalfinancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report O Q¥ & e . tha aAr.
Travels Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2024

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance Wwith generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
~ Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Suri & Sudhir
Chartered Accountants

Membership: NG, 080338
UDIN No. 24080338BKCWMV8273

Date-22-05-2024
Place- New Delhi




Dook Travels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate Information

Dook Travels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India afid
incorporated on December 27, 2013 under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. rf.:placed with
Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f April 01, 2014. The Company is engaged in the business of providing tour and

travel related services..

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation requirements of
Division IT of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT). The financial statements

comply with Ind AS notified by Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA).
These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of directors on May 22,2024.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Company, to all the years presented in the said financial statements.

Accounting policies and methods of computation followed in the Financial Statements are same as compared with
the financial statements of the holding company (Easy Trip Planners Limited - formerly known as Easy Trip
Planners Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2024.

The preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest millions, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair. value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Combafly uses valuation techniques that ate appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data

dré avﬁlatiie to mieasiire fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mifiithising the use of

& A L e . L -

uribbservable inputs.— For DOOK TRAVEL%PVT, LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

year.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as

explained above.

2.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting year, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting year.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily
for the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ("PPE')

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The 1mt1al cost of PPE comprises purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any
trade discounts and rebates), borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs aré ificluded in the dsset’s eatfyifig atfiount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate,
onl;iéieﬁ it i$ probable that the futire économic benefits associated with expenditure will flow ito the Company

and the cost of the iteri can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainfenanice aré ¢harged to Statement of
Profit anid Loss at the titmé of iictrrencs.  For pooK TRAVEL%PVT. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset

is derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using tt-le rates arr.ived at
based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives prescribed in

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particulars Years
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Software ; 3
Lease Hold Improvements 10

Intangible Assets 10

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-
least as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives,
residual values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is
calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item
can be measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on their specific
useful lives. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in
which they are incurred.

2.5 Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company
amortizes software over the best estimate of its useful life which is three years Website maintenance costs are
charged to expense as incurred.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed prospectively. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from
the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changés are accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Gaitis or losses arising from de-récogrition of an irtatigible asset are measured as the differerice between the net
disposal priceeds and the cartying arfiount of the asset and aré recoghized in the statetient of profit and loss
wheni the asset is derecogitized:  For DOOK TRAVELS PVT.LTD.  For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

2.6 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract. is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset, the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and §h01ﬂd
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

— the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset if either:

o the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

e the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optiondl rehewal period if the Compatiy is reasonably certaifi to exercise ah extensioh option, and
penaties for eatly termination wamﬁmmecmrsmmwmwwmwy.

The lease liability is measured at arortised cost uising the efféctive ititerest fethiod. It is remeasured when there
is 4 chanige in future lease payments arising froth & change in an index or rate, if there is & change in the
Compatly y’s st e.of the dmount expectéd (o be payable urider  residual value guatartee, or if the Company
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(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made_to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.
The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease

payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘properfy,
plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘other non-current financial liabilities” in the statement of financial

position.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Where the Company is the lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.7 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

() Fihancial assets

All firiancial assets are récognized iitially at faif value. Transaetion costs that ate directly atiributable o the

dcquisition of financial assets (other than finaricial assets at fair value throtigh profit of tos$) are added to the fair

value measured on iniitial recognition of finaricial assét. Piirchiase atd sale of fiflaneial assets are accouited for at

settlement date.- - For DOOK TRAVELS Fe{T. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-tex:m deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Classification

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value t!)rough othgr
comprehensive income (OCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt insn'uments.), c!emguated at fair
value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) and

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial instruments at amortized cost
A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other
receivables.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’)

A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCIL On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL?)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments
included in the fair value through profit and loss category aré measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT.LTD.  For DOOK TRAVELS PVT, LTD
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables
with no significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case, they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal)
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, or at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A ﬁnar}cial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finante costs in the statermerit of profit and loss. This category generally applies t6 Botrowitigs.

2.9 Revenié recogition cor DOCK TR gﬂ/s\?w LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of airline tickets and hotel
packages as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the Company
does not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company
has adopted the new standard on the transition date using the full retrospective method.

Contract balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the

Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables .
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the

passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.10 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of
the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent restatement / settlement, recognized in the statement of profit and loss
within other expenses / other income.

2.11 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the

contributiofi payable to the schemie for service received before the Balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
mﬁy paid, thié deficit payablé t6 the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already

The Compatiy operates defined benéfit plan for its entployess, viz, gratuity. THe costs of providing benefits
:;ttefﬁ;ﬁe ﬁ{ﬁ? dre detettnitied on mh of detuarial valuation at each year-eiid. Actuarial valuation i carried
tl\s‘. oL, T m 5 " .m s s . * & § 1 R = Y b
\ For DOOK TW@@%WL%.WI YR OBIORERIE A e TD.
4 W

\\ £ c,“‘f/ Director Director




Dook Travels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

employees in India are entitled for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible
employees (meeting the required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on
a pre-defined formula. The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present
value of the defined benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present
value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates
of government bonds. The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount
rate to the plan assets and defined benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net
defined benefit liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of
the net defined benefit liability are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise. The said re-measurements comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions), the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-
classified to the statement of profit and loss in any of the subsequent years.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to

pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

2.12 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income
tax obligation for the year are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities. Any
interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income tax charge or
(credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in
the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the
current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis,

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements.

Defetred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can bé utilised.

The earryitig amouit of deferred tak assets ts is réviewed at each reporting date 4nd rediced to the extent that it is no
luﬂga‘mﬁ&ﬁmmmwﬁmﬂ&waﬁsfemmﬁmﬁ&rm&af%da%a&mmambe
titilised. Unirecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each mﬂm and are recognised fo the extent
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year whel_l the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.

2.13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in
a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity

shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the pufpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of

all dilutive potential equity shares.
2.14 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the
effect of time value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the

current best estimates.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

2.15 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, in addition to above items, any bank overdrafts / cash credits that are integral part of the Company’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.17 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on Historical experience arid various other #ssumptions and factofs (ineluding expectations of
futiite events), tiat the Company believes fo be reasonable under the existing cireumstances, THe said estimates
mﬁagﬂu@ﬁgh&ummﬁ&sﬁmﬂ&aﬁamﬁm@ﬁé, ot that oeetirhed after that date biit provide
ddditional evidetice sl_mt conditions existing ds at the feporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses
thése estittidtes, actual results could différ materially from these estifiates - sven if the assumptions underlying

reasonable whén made, if these results differ from Historical expéfience of other assurhptions
For DOOK TRAVELS PVT.LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS P\(T. LTD.

o

Director Director




Dook Travels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in
the year in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

a. Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balances and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible are provided in note 8 and 34.

b. Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these ass ions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.  For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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Dook Travels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

¢. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d. Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management

estimate.
e. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

f. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any years
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). Termination options in given in lease of office space to the
lease, which have been included in the lease liability as Company is not intended to terminate the lease. Reason
for not to exercise the termination option is because Company requires the office premise for future period,
location of office premise is prominent and lease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in
respect to extension and termination option which is not included in the lease liability.

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD
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Dook Travels Private Limited
CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

i Notes As at As at Asat
Earhiculary March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
ASSETS
Non—curreE;::edﬂ : 3 1.68 1.51 L1
Property, p equipment 4 38.18 47.77 5
:hght—«:‘l:uis::;s 5 19.48 20.48 20.38
“'“(;;C:;t;m financial assets 11 6.62 1.33 101

12 3.74 - 0.44
Deferred tax asset (net)
’ 2.94
Total non-current assets 69.70 71.09 _ 2.9
Current assets
Fil ial ts
m:il;cll;v:::icms 9 30.32 - 488

(i) 10 3 = 2943

(ifi) Trade receivables 6 38.51 14.44 277

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 7 41.63 19.71 23.98

(v) Other Bank balance 8 0.55 0 :

(v) Other financial assets - 1 L
Current Tax Assets (net) 13 2 L17 :
Other current assets 14 75.00 18.81 1.29
Total current assets 186.01 59.28 63.42
Total assets 255,71 13037 86,36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 15 0.30 £30 0.30
Other equity 16 54,32 41,37 35.60
Total equity 54.62 41.67 35.90
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 33 17.24 15.36 14.02
Provisions 19 2.06 - -
Deferred tax liability (net) 21 2 0.96 s
Total non-current liabilities 19.30 16.32 14,02
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease Liabilities 33 4.36 599 546
(ii) Trade payables 17
(a)Tnh]oumﬂndh:gdnxsefnﬂwoaﬁnpﬁmmdmﬂlm - 2 =
@)Tmﬂomﬁingdmofmdhmaoﬂnthmuﬁmmmmimmdmﬂmm 55.12 19.70 0.19
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17A 493 s =
Contract liability 18 s01.30 3727 21.80
Provisions 19 0.06 s -
Other current liabilities 20 8.88 9.41 8.98
Current tax liabilites 7.15 z :
Total current liabilities 181.80 72.37 36.43
Total liabilities 201,10 88.69 50,45
Total equity and liabilities 255,71 130,36 86.36

See accompanying notes forming part of these financial statements

Tbemompan;dngmsmminhegxﬂpmofspecialplmseﬁmmhlsmemem.
As per our report of even date

For SURI & SUDHIR

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration }§#

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dook Travels Private Limited

RAJELS PVT. LTD.

& For DOO For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
Sudhir Kumar Aro Sandeep Kumar Gupta Gopal Krishan
Partner Director Director
Membership No, 08033 DIN: 03046491 DIN: 03071404
PRirecicr 4

Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Director
Date: May 22,2024 z 4
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

N For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars otes Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 3z2.01 145.68
Other income 23 9.85 377
Total income (I) 331.86 1045
Expenses
Service cost 206.42 76.63
Employee benefits expense 24 57.45 39.23
Finance cost 25 5.76 5.92
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 14.82 5.37
Other expenses 27 29.41 14.68
Total Expenses (IT) 313.86 141.83
Profit/(Loss) before tax (V=ITI+IV) 18.00 7.62
Tax expense 34
Current tax \ 929 1.85
Adjustment of tax for previous years 0.46 =
Deferred tax (4.70) -
Total Tax Expense (VI) i 5.05 1.85
Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII=V-VI) 12.95 577
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans % L
(ii) Income tax relating to above = =
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VIII = a+b) - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year ' 12.95 577
Earning/(Loss) per equity share: 29
B?sic EPS (InRs.) 431.53 192.32
Diluted EPS (In Rs.) 431.53 192.32
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of special purpose financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For SURI & SUDHIR
Chmen?d Aocotmmms 2 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No. 000601N Dook Travels Private Limited

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTl nooK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

Sandeep ar} Gopal Krishan r
Director Director
DIN: 03046491 Director DIN: 03071404
Iecic irecto
: . Irecior
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi 5

ml\fal‘%.gfih u%c:'ll Q;-Sl <. TN M N % 9 :FZ. Date: May 22,2024 Date: May 22,2024




Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Pirticalacs For the period Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year before tax 18.00 7.62
Non cash adjustment to reconcile (Loss)/Profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 14.82 537
Impairment all of trade receivabl 1.60 127
Provision for doubtful advances 132 7
Loss on sale of assets 0.04 -
Balance Written off - 5
Provision for contingencies L g
Cessation of Lease Liability (0.14) .
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (032) 2.08
Profit on sale of mutual funds (1.49) (2.35)
Liabilities no longer required written back - 5
Interest income on:
g :iepom: with bank (034) (0.30)
e . (3.02)
Security deposits carried at amortised cost (0.20) ©.17)
Interest expense
- On others 1.60 1.07
- On Lease Liabilities 3.00 4.15
Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes 39.39 13.18
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (25.67) (10.40)
(Increase) / Decrease in loans - 29.43
(L ) / Dy in Other financial Assets 5.49 (5.31)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (57.50) (17.52)
Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payables 33.92 19.54
Increase / (decrease) in Other financial liabilities 493 -
Increase / (decrease) in Contract liabilites 64.03 1547
Increase / (decrease) in Other current liabilities (0.53) 0:43
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions 2.12 -
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 66.18 44.81
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (1.47) (1.95)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) 64.71 42.86
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.74) (48.64)
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 0.16 i
Proceeds / (investment) in mutual funds (28-51) s
Invumuﬂindq)miuhavingmmuitjrofmeﬂnnJmeha ; e
e o -
; 3.32
Net cash f i i i : 7
cash flows used in investing activities (B) (34.72) (40.1
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Cash Flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Interest and principal payment of lease liabilites (1.60) (Lo7)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities ( (o} :::3-,) Lo
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2 e
Cashmdushequivnlemnmebegimingufﬂuyw 1-;2 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 4[:6; T
Components of cash and cash equivalents : e
Cash on hand ‘
Fund in transit S g
Balances with banks i iy
— On current accounts
= Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months b l:':;
Total cash and i i : '
and cash equivalents [Refer note 6(iii)] 41.63 19.11
The accompanying notes are an integral part of special purpose financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For §
or UR]&SUD:;I: Fnrndolbe.halfnfﬂleﬂurdoﬂ)irutonnf
lCC1 Alw "'Fmd ‘R@mmj'm e Dook Travels Private Limited
TRAVELS PVT. LTD. ]
~ g\ = b I
Sudhir Kumar Arora * k er DOO ; Hr\% i i DOOK : RA‘\"‘:L
Paraes artleep Kumar Gupta Gopd Krishan Kapoor
Membership No. 08033 DIN: 03046491
\ 3 DIN: 03071404
' o ; . P b
Piac?,Ne\gzDelln SCACY Place : New Delhi 101 1€CLC! Place : New Delhi
BERFE U b0l eor 1 s My 232 i D My 23000

VT. LTD.

Director



Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: Us3000DL2013PTC262812
Special Purpose Stat of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 10)

Particulars _ Number —Amount
As at April 1, 2022 30,000 0.30
Add: Shares issued during the year 2 2
As at March 31, 2023 30,000 0.30
Add: Shares issued during the year z =
As at December 31,2023 30,000 0.30
Other Equity
Attributable to the equity holders of the company
Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Items of Other Comprehensive Total
Retained earnings Income

Balance as at April 1, 2022 35.60 - 35.60
Profit for the year 5.77 - 5.77
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss): - - -

(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans - - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 41.37 - 41,37
Balance as at March 31, 2023 41.37 - 41.37
Profit for the year 1295 12.95
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss): ™

(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans - - %
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 54,31 - 54.31
Add:SEun'iﬁespreniumonshmissmddwingmeyw - " >
Balance as at March 31, 2024 54.31 = 54.31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of special purpose financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For SURI & SUDHIR For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.-800x Dook Travels Private Limited

Sudhir Kuﬁnr

Fer DOOK “E_F}&AVELS PV LTD.

leep Kumar Gupta E

Fer DOOK

RAVELSPVT. LTD,

Partner ; Director . Director
Membership No, 0803 DIN: 03046491 Jfy_—~~" DIN: 03071404
P : i 3 .
Iau.Mh:c:ZD;h Place ; New Delhi Director Place : New Delhi i
: May 22, Date: May 22,2024 il Date:May222024  Directcr
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Dook Travels Private Limited
CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Computer Furniture and fixtures Office equipment Vehicle Total
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2022 o.l10 031 0.40 0.30 L11
Additions 0.55 0.12 017 - 0.84
Disposals - 0.00 - - 0.00
At March 31, 2023 0.65 0.43 0.57 030 195
Additions 0.51 0.09 0.14 - 0.74
Disposals/Written off - 023 021 - 0.44
At March 31, 2024 1.16 0.29 0.50 030 2.25
Depreciation and impairment
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2022 - - - - .
Charge for the year 0.02 0.04 030 0.07 0.43
Di - 5 - s =
At March 31,2023 0.02 0.04 030 0.07 043
Charge for the year 019 0.05 0.06 0.07 037
Disposals - 0.06 0.17 - 0.23
At March 31, 2024 0.21 0.03 0.19 0.14 0.57
Net book value
At April 1, 2022 0.10 031 0.40 030 L1
At March 31, 2023 0.63 0.39 027 0.23 151
At March 31, 2024 095 0.26 0.31 016 1.68
Non[i):Onumsjlinnw!ndAS(i.a.Aprill.!mymewmyhsduudmmﬁnuwiﬁdnnnyingvnlmofnul’mpeny,plunmd quip d as per the p ‘GAAP and use that carrying value as the

deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment.

Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
/

Directer
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Dook Travels Private Limited
CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812
Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Total
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2022 = =
Additions 47.79 47.79
Disposals = =
As at March 31, 2023 47.79 47.79
Additions - =
Disposals/transfer - -
As at March 31, 2024 47.79 47.79
Depreciation and impairment
Deemed Cost as at April 1, 2022 - -
Charge for the year 0.03 0.03
Disposals - <
As at March 31, 2023 0.03 0.03
Charge for the year 9.58 9.58
Disposals = i
As at March 31, 2024 9.61 9,61
Net book value
At April 1, 2022 - 5
As at March 31, 2023 47.77 47.77
As at March 31, 2024 38.18 38.18

Note (i): On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 1, 2022), the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Intangible assets measured

as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets.

Foer DOOK TRA

AELS PVT. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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Dook Travels Private Limited
CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812
Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Right-of-use assets

Gross Block

Balance as at April 01, 2022
Additions

Modifications

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Additions

Modifications

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2022
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Balance as at March 31, 2024

bt

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

Direcicr

Total

20.38
5.01

2539

1.40

29.26

4.91

4.91
4.87

9.78

20.38

20.48

19.48

tar DOOK Tt

TRA

VELS

WY S

PVT. LTD.
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Dook Travels Private Limited
CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812
Notes to financial stat for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6 Trade receivables
As at Asat As at
March3l, 204 March31,20  Apriton2ez
Trade receivables 3851 14.44 27
Rouivahhﬁmuhadwﬁu(&nﬁrm}é) = = &
SE T SRR 277
Break-up of Trade Receivables:
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Trade receivables
Considered good - secured - - >
Considered good - unsecured 38.51 1444 277
Und'qmdmmhwmlwuiﬂiﬂmmhmhmk 1.17 - -
39.68 14.44 m
Impaii 1] (all for bad and doubtful debts)
Undi d Trade Receivat idered good = ot -
Ummmlu-hdhwemﬁmmlmﬂmk (1.17) - -
Total Trade Receivables MR 14,44 R
Set out below is the i the all for expected credit losses of trade receivables:
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 &ri.l,m
Bdmunlbbeghn‘-.urhyw . - 5
Additions during the year 1.17 - -
Bﬂnwlﬂ:m‘d&emr kil - -
Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2024
Olnnihghrlohmuwhd.fmmuiudm
Particulars = "otal
l‘:'“:::‘ "';': 1 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years T
Undisputed Trade recoivables — considered good 39.68 z 5 z : 39.68
Undisputed Tradelmdvablu-wediing_ug' - 0.87 - - 031 117
|Total Trade Receivables 39.68 0.87 - - 031 40.85
As at March 31, 2023
0\1% for followins from transaction date
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - | T
g -.y:ur 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years "
13.38 0.24 0.06 - 077 14.44
1333 0.24 0.06 - 0.77 14.44
Om"lll‘l‘-rl‘nl-wi from transaction date
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 Total
s presn 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 0.05 .10 0.38 0.76 143 277
Undi Trade Receivables — credit impai - - - 5 & 5
Total Trade Receivables 0.05 0.10 038 0.76 1.48 2.77
T Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at
Mud]l,m Mln-.thlim April 01, 2022
Balances with banks
~ On current accounts 41.50 14.51 17.50
-Mﬂwnmﬂhﬁum-m - 4.67 548
Cash on hand 0.09 0.49 0:
Fund in transit 0.4 0.04 S
Total 41.63 19.71 23.98
Fuhmdhmdc-hﬂawl,c-h-dmhmmmhfﬂhu
As at As at As at
anl,m erﬂ:lllim ézr_ﬂ.llﬂn
Balances with banks
~ On current accounts 41.50 14.51 7.50
-Depuhwiﬁwi;hdmﬂuiydhulﬁ-&mnmm - 4?67 ls.ll
Cash on hand z
Fund in transit i G, o
Total 41,63 19.71 23.98

Fer DOOK TRA ;’EL%}?VT. LTD.
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other Bank balance

Balances with banks:
- Deposits with orignal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Total

Investments at fair value through profit and less (FVTPL)

Quoted Liquid Mutual Fund Units
Investment in mutual fand
4,11,268.50 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022; NIL) units of INR 24,3693 (March 31, 2023; NIL April 01, 2022: NIL)

cach unit fully paid up of Aditya Birla Sun Life Arbitrage Fund

8,19,631.15 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL) units of INR 12.46 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL)
cach unit fully paid up of Aditya Birla Sun Lifo Transportation and Logistics Fund

829.44 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL) units of INR 12,157.74 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL)
each unit fully paid up of ICICI Prudential Large and Mid Cap Fund

1.8430 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL) units of INR 10.0002 (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: NIL) cach
unit fully paid up of Quantum Liquid Fund

NIL (March 31, 2023:NIL April 01, 2022: 36,380.312) units of INR NIL (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: 65.87)
cach unit fully paid up of Franklin India Focused Equity Fund

NIL (March 31, 2023: NIL April 01, 2022: 27,078.192) units of INR NIL (March 31, 2023; NIL April 01, 2022: 91.55)
each unit fully paid up of HDFC Mid-cap opportuinities fund

Tetal FYTPL investments

Current

Aggregale book value of quoted investments
Aggregale market value of quoted investments
Aggregale amount of im pai in the value of i

Current
Loans to related parties
Total

Total current

Other financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non Current

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months
a) Security deposits

Unsccured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits
Total Other Non-current financial assets

Current
Other recoverables

o

i

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

As at Asat

o
I3z
e

As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March31,203 Aprilot, 2
10.02 < 3
1021 : >
10.08 3 2
000 2 3
- - 240
¥ E 248
T - s
3032 : 488
3032 = 438
3032 : ™
Asat As at Asal
Marech 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2021
2 : 29.43
7 2 2943
243,
5 A 243
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
542 - E
120 1.34 Lo1
73] 13 )
562 134 To1
- 315 -
- 515 -

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD

Director

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

Directcr



Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812
Nﬂmuﬁ.dﬂlmh&epﬂdﬁmA,prillll.ﬂl‘luﬂnd)l.m
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

12

13(a)

Deferred tax asset (net):

Deferred tax relates to the followings:
hmdmwwhmﬁmﬂﬂhhhmym-ﬂwﬁnwhmbfum

purposcs on payment basis

Impact of diture charged to th dmdhhhmwwuhymmmwkfum
purposes on payment basis

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Net deforred tax asset/(liability)

Rwﬂﬂiﬂimd‘dd‘medlum(nu):

Opu‘n;hnlmoldﬁmedmm[net)uumol
Tuimﬂm)&mhmwhwﬁwhu
Tnhumtm)dllh;hy_whod‘-od
Closing balance of deferred tax asset (net) as at March 31

Current tax assets (Net)

Tax assets
Advance tax

Total current Tax Assets

Current tax liabilities (Net)

ki
Current tax linbilities (Nct)

Total current Tax Assets

Current
Advance to Employee

Advance to Suppliers

Credit impaired
Advance to suppliers
Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Total current other assets

(This space has been tntentionally left blank)

/

Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
374 - 044
3.74 - 0.44
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-0.96 044
505 1.85
374 -0.96
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
= L17 Lo7
5 117 LIy
As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Aﬁll‘m

Fcr DOOK TRAVEL%PVT, LTD.

Diracter

714 % X
7.14 u %
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
0.00 0.70 g
0.05 941 0.10
74.95 8.70 L19
132 . 3
-1.32 2 s
75.00 18.81 1.29
75,00 18.81 1.29

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. L1t
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

15 Share Capital

Details of share capital is as follows:

Authorised Share Capital

Equity Shares
500,000 (March 31, 2023: 500,000, April 1, 2022: 500,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach

Total

Equity Shares b
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
30,000 (March 31, 2023: 30,000 ; April 1, 2022: 30,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reparting year

(a) Reconcilistion of suthorised share capital as at year end :

‘Ordinary Equity shares

As at April 01, 2022 (Equity shares of INR 10 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 10 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 cach)

®) ciliation of the shares ng and at the end of the reporting year:

Ordinary Equity shares

Issued , subscribed and fully paid up
As at April 1, 2022

Add: Issucd during the year

As af March 31, 2023

Add: Issued during the year

As at March 31, 2024

{€)  Detuils of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
April 01, 2022

As at
March 31, 2023

5.00

500

0.30

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

il 8 8

Asat

Class & Name of Sharcholder March 31, 2024

As al
March 31, 2023

Asat
April 01, 2022

i

ol helding_

Number % of holding

% of holding

Equity shares

Sandeep Kumar Gupia
‘Gopal Krishna Kapoor
Easy Trip Planners Limited

24.50%
24.50%
51.00%

7350
7350

(d) Terms rights attached to Equity shares

The company has only one class of Equity having & par valuc Rs. 10.00 per share. Each sharcholder is

15,000
15,000 50.00%

0.00%

15,000 50.00%
15,000

0.00%

dﬁﬂ:humwhﬂimmmwhhﬂuﬁmh-ﬁmbmwdhmhu'ﬁ.\—i

mmmhunrmmhhmdwmmm“mnmhmmdummmua fi amounts, to their shareholdi
(¢)  Detalls of shares held by the Holding company
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Number of shares %
holding Number of shares % holding Number of shares % holding
Easy Trip Planners Limited 15,300 51.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
(/  Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2024
Prometer Name No. of shares at the Change during the year  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year of the year the year
Equity Shares
Sandeep Kmn'(hph 15,000 (7,650) 7,350 24.50% =25.50%
Gopal Krishna Kapoor 15,000 (7,650) 7,350 24.50% 25.50%
As at March 31, 2023
Prometer Name Ne. of shares at the Change during the year  No. of shares at the end % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year of the year the year
Equity Shares
&ndql(murﬁwh 15,000 (15,000) 15,000 50.00% 0.00%
Gopal Krishna Kapoor 13,000 340,832 15,000 50.00% 0.00%
As at April 01, 2022
No. of shares at the April Na. of shares at the % change during
81, 2 D CRp ey il 01, 2022 % ut Tntil Seied s
15,000 . 15,000 50 0.00%
15,000 - 15,000 50.00% 0.00%
LS LYD. =

PVT.
<




Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

16  Other equity
Particulars v
Retained earnings
As at April 1, 2022 e
Add: Profit for the year pore
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 5
As at March 31, 2023 Sl —
Add: Profit for the year 12.95
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year i
As at March 31, 2024 e

—_—

Total Reserve and Surplus
As at April 1, 2022 o
As at March 31, 2023 g
As at March 31, 2024 btz

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT, LTD.  For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD

b+ W
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

17  Trade payables
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro prises and small (Refer note 30) - - a
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small pri 55.12 19.70 0.19
Tota YT 1570 TR
deuuyaﬂsmm&nﬂmbuﬁnnnﬁﬂmmﬂlymﬂdmmdmm
As at March 31, 2024
ieul qubrﬂcwhgpeﬁ-ﬁwmm Total
5 Le_llllnnln;-_r 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 55.12 - - - 55.12
‘Total S55.12 - - - SS.LId
As at March 31, 2023
icul Outstanding for foll periods from transaction date
S Ti
2 Less than Lyear | 12 yenrs 2.3 years More than 3 years -
Total outstanding dues of micro ises and small
| Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
e sl A 19.30 0.05 033 0.02 19.70
Total 19.30 0.05 033 0.02 19,70
e =
As at April 1, 2022
N Ouhtll_dgﬁr__ riods from transaction date
Particulars
Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than 3 o
Total outstanding dues of micro prises and small pri
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
i o s - - 013 0.07 0.19
Total - @

0.13 0.07 0.19
mmmwummmmmmmmmmmmmmmm and small pri ulM!l,Zﬂﬂ;MJl,:ﬂﬂmdMﬂ
1,2022.

The above ageing is prepared for Invoices booked on first in first out basis,
17A  Other Financial Liabilities
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Current
Other Payables 4.93 - -
Total 4.93 - -
18 Contract liability
Deferred revenue 113 = -
Advance from cusiomers 100.17 37.27 21.80
101.30 37.27 21.80
19  Provisions
As at As at As at
o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 32) 2.06 -
Total Non-current Provisions 2.06 -
—— o]
Current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 32) 0.06 - -
Total Current Provisions 0.06 - -
—
AVELS PVT. LTD.

L
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

20  Other current liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 ﬂﬁﬂ.m
Statutory dues payable .
Tax deducted at source payable 1.56 1.36 394
GST Payable 213 232 1.56
Provident fund payable 035 0.31 0.19
Other statutory dues Payable 0.01 0.01 0.00
Employee Benefits Payable 4.83 5.41 3.29
Total Other current kabilities 2 ’.4-1 l&
21  Deferred tax liability
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities - ‘ 0.96 -
- 0.96 =
= A\ = T LTD.
ar K TRAVELS PVT. Ee T A =
kot DOO ¢ o DOOK i R;.‘;‘\:ZLS Pv-l-'. LTD

N~
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

22 R from Ci with Cy
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's from op
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Type of services
R‘“d':\“‘ir“f’““m 13.08 2174
308.93 123.94
Hotel Packages
Other services 5 b
Total revenue from operations (A) 322.01 145.68
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 322.01 145.68
‘Total revenue from operations 3_27;21 l4¥
(b)  Set out below, is the reconciliation of the from operations with the d in the infe i
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue
Extemal customers 322.01 145.68
Inter-segment = 2
322.01 145,68
= = and kit 5
Total revenue from operations 32201 145.68
(c)  Contract balances
The following table provides infc ion about receivables, assets, and lisbilities from contracts with customers.
As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Trade receivables 3851 14.44 2n
Contract assets - = -
Contract liabilities 101.30 37.27 21.80
Tndamuuivdﬂesnmn—inmmbwhgmdmgmuﬂlymumof]ﬂh%dayxbuﬁngﬂmpuiodmdedmchﬂ,2024,RiNiJMJI,ZOB,R&Ni[;AdeGI.ZOZI-Rs.NiI)w
gnised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.
(d)  Reconciling the of gnised in the of profit and loss with the contracted price:
For the year ended For the year ended
: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 322.01 145,68
Adjustments
Less: Discounts offered to customers = .
R from with 322.01 145.68
(e)  Performance obligations
Tnk: ion sbout the Company’s perfe Sligations ol Balow:
The '_ price alk d to the ining perfi bligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at year end are, as follows:
Asat As at As at
33 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Within one year 139.81 5171 2458
More than one year - » 3
139.81 sl_i?l 24.58
13 Other income
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Other non-operating income
Interest income:
On deposits with bank 0.34 030
On loans - J.o2
,j ity d : . sod at ised cost 0.20 017
Cessation of Lease Liability 0.14 -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 032 208
Profit on sale of mutual fund 1.49 235
Liabilities no longer required written back & %
;i.3.7:36 23 ..ol
¥ »-st.\{m‘.ﬁ.h-y, r
—_— T
ARl S D. i
Fer DOOK erwL? PVA. L] or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LT




Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(umuhhmm-ﬂnmh stated)

24 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 53.18 37.26
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.95 1.82
Gratuity expense (refer note 32) i-ﬁ n'|s

Staff welfare expenses X X
5745 39.23

25 Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest at amortised cost:
- On others 1.60 1,07
- On lease liabilities (refer note 32) 3.00 415
Bank Charges 116 0.70
5.76 592
—
26 Depreciation and tion exp

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipments (refer note 3) 037 043
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (refer note 4) 958 0.03
Amortisation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 5) 4.87 491
14.82 537
T —

27 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rent 0.15 032
Power and Fuel L.10 0.79
Advertising and sales i 13.56 870
Commision expense 1.62 0.61
Fixed assets written off 0.03 3
Repair and Maintenance -
- Others 3.66 1.62
Rates and taxes 0.71 0.23
Travelling and Conveyance 057 0.57
Communication Costs 0386 087
Printing and Stationary 0.41 031
Legal and Professional Fees 037 021
ol 1 of teads oY 1.60 -1.27
Provision for doubtful advances 132 1
Payment to Auditor (Refer note below) 045 040
Loss on sale of assets 0.04 -
Insurance expenses 0.85 0.89
Exchange loss (net) 0.26 021
Donation 022 0.02
Provision for contingencies 1.50 )
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.16 0.19
Total 29.41 14.68
e — ——
Note
(i) Payment to auditors:
Statutory Audit Fees 045 0.40
For Other Services o i
0.45 0.40

i

12 i3

NOOK “:‘:t;':\\,’E(LS PVT. LTD. ror DOOK TRAY
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

28 C of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

During the year ended 31 March 2024

Equity instruments through
Particulars - Co hecsive Buckmib Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets - =
During the year ended 31 March 2023

Equity instruments through 5
Particulars Other C: " R Retained earnings Total

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans =
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets = =

29 Earning per share (EPS)
Bﬁcmhpwnqln‘iy:l:nlmbmwnwhdby&ﬁdhsnmnnﬁuﬁuuxbthﬁ;hndwamﬁuofwﬁgmmmﬁumlfwyear.Dﬂmedumingspunqlilyshm
has been computed using the weighted age number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars i
Ll March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to equity sharehold Rs. Millions 12.95 577
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS Numbers 30,000 30,000
‘Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS Numbers 30,000 30,000
Basic EPS [Nominal value Rs. 10 per share (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 10 per share)] Rs. 431.53 19232
Diluted EPS [Nominal value Rs. 10 per share (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 10 per share)] Rs. 431.53 19232
For DOOK T 'r(.:‘x‘\.'.:L"\/P\.’T. LTE: For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

o
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01,2023 to March 31,2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

30 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006
The Company, has during the year, initiated the process of identification of its suppliers rendering their status under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the year end along with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have been provided in the books of accounts.
Based on the information available with the Company there are following principle/interest amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises.

Particulars As at March 31,2023  AsatMarch31,2022  Asat April 1,2021

Principal due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at - - -
year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end - . -
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day - = &
during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 8

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, - - =
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers regi: d under MSMED Act, for payments already . = 3
made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years . : L

Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. e Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

b
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Dook Travels Private Limited

(CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 First time adoption of Ind AS
A:Mdnmhl(u).ﬂuﬁn_lmhhwaﬂdmil mumldhlhﬁilmnlﬁmlmmemmMA&prﬁmhﬂmﬁwuﬁimﬂ.m.h
Company had prepased its under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Act (provious GAAF).

Accordingly, hmhwmmmwmuumhwmumn 2024, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, as
thmdmﬁmmﬂuhmﬁ—ﬁ—dwhﬂm;mh“wﬂunml 2022, which is the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note
explains the f ‘made by th P previous GAAP financial including the balance sheet as at April 1, 2022 and the financial statements as st and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

This note explains exemptions availed by the Company hmmmcwr...ui-lmmﬁ.mmuuqum,m:muwmm-u.ﬂ&.&-y_-ﬂdmsl,ms.

Esemptions applied:
Ind AS 101, anmdmmwmhmmdhdm:xmmﬂ pli d jons from the specti lication of certain Ind AS. The Company has applied
the following exemptions and P from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

@ Mandatory exceptions:

a) Estimates
'I‘hnmuﬁpll zozzndubhwbil aoz:n-m-ummndehhmhnmmmummmumwmﬂmmm)mmmm

items of P AP did not requit

« Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

The estimates used by the Company 1o present these smouns in with Ind AS reflect conditions as at April 1, 2022 and March 31, 2023.

b) De-recognition of financial assets:
The Company has applied the de-recogniti qui inTnd AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or afler the date of transition to Ind AS.

) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Hﬁslolmumyhn-mdwdmlmwwuwmmmmihmmmﬂﬁmdﬂ-mﬁwmwuqun the standard

permits d at st based on the facts and cis ing at the date of transition if' 7 is imp

Accordingly, the Company has ined the ification and of i into amarti or FVTOCI based on the fiots and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Campany has applied the impai quis of Ind AS 109 ively; however, itted by Ind AS 101, it has used bie informetion tha i vailable without undue cost o effort o determine
lheﬁaﬁmtlllhchnﬂuwmmmdwm“nthmlmhmmnhmmFuﬂﬂ'lhn(:mhlnm dertaken an ive search for i ion when

determining, at the date of transition 1o Ind AS, whether there have been significant inereases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitied by Ind AS 101.

(i) Optional exemptions:

Ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certai nptions from the ive application of certail i muumwmwwww

#) Deemed cost-Previous GAAP earrying amount:

Ind AS 101 permits s first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equi as ised in the financial unﬂ:&tﬁmhhﬂ.ﬁﬂ,m-phw
‘GAAP and use that as its decmed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 38 and Ind AS 40 respectively. Accordingly, the Company has elected
1o measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value.

b) Leases

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to determine whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition to Ind ASs contains a lease in accordance with Ind AS 116, on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.
‘The standard provides an option to apply Ind AS 116 on ition date either using full ive method or modified retrospective method alang with some available practical expedients

/ » the Company has elected 1o follow modified retrospective method for transition to Ind AS 116.The company has also applied practical expedients wherein:

1) it has used single discount rate of 15% ;

i) it hus clected to apply short term lease exemption to leases for which term ends within 12 months of the dete of initial spplication; and

iii) it has elected to apply low value lease exemption to leases of low value assets.

) Revenue
The Compeny has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenuc from contracts with customers® to contracts that are not completed on transition date. Further, the
practical expedients as prescribed by the standard. - Company has applied full retrospeotive approach on transition date subject to some

Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD. Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
i
/
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

¢ Effect ofind AS adoption on Balance Sheet us at April 01,2022

:uusloiwmmnhymmnﬂam:y.m:mmmmmhmm&.mﬁwmmhmﬂmmwmwuuu.

Particulars Amount as per IGAAP # GAAP Adjustments/ Prior Period Amount as per Ind AS
Adjustments
I ASSETS
(1} Nonm-current assels
(&) Property, Plant and Equipment 1.09 002 L1
(b) Intangible Assets = & =
© Righl-of-use - 2038 2038
(@  Financial Assets .
Other financial Assets = Lol Lol
{¢) Deferred tax asset (net) 044 - 044
() Non-current Invenstment 280 280 -
(@) Loans and advances 2943 -29.43 -
() Other assets 190 -1.90 -
Total Non- current Assets 35.66 =12.72 22.94 |
(2) Current assets
(s) Financial assets
(i) Investments - 488 4.88
(i) Loans i 2943 29.43
(ia1) Trade receivables 2m 0.00 wam
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 2389 0.09 2398
(v) Other Bank balance = = 2
Other current assets 149 £0.20 129
Loans and advances 299 -299 -
Current tax asset (net) = 107 107
Total Current Assets 3L14 32.28 63.42
Total Asscts 66.80 19.56 86.36
e
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(8) Equity Share capital 0.30 - 0.30
(b) Other Equity 1353 201 35.60
Tetal Equity 33.83 207 35.90
LIABILITIES
(1) Now- current linbilities
(i) Lease Luhllm - 1402 14.02
Non-current provision 063 063 -
Other non-current lisbilities - - -
Total non- current liabilities 0.63 13.39 14.02
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
() Lease Lisbilities - 546 546
()  Trade payables K
total ing ducs of prises and small
5 = 5 5
-ﬂll-ﬂ-lnpun 193 -1.74 0.19
(b) Other n.mt lduhuu 29.47 -20.49 898
© (.}A?muhbmly - 21.80 21.80
Provision 095 095 -
Lisbilities for current tax (nef) 3 ;
Total Current liabilities 32.38 4.08 %644
Total Linbilitics 32.98 1748 50.46
Total and Linbilities
66.81 I’_ﬁ 86.36
# Previous GAAP figures have by conform to Ind AS for the purpose of this note,
(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: U63000DL2013PTC262812

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(ANl amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

&) Effectoflnd AS adoption on Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

Particulars Amount as per IGAAP # GAAP Adjustments/ Prior Period Amount as per Ind AS
Adjustments
1 ASSETS
@ Property, Equipment 127 0.24 1.51
e Iotangible M.mm an 0.00 am
o - 2048 2048
(<} Right-of-use assets
@ . i - 133 133
Other financial Assets _
(€) Deferred tax asset (nct) X y
(f) Other non-current asscts 2.23 -2.23 =
Total Non- current Assets 51.27 19.81 7108
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investments - = 5
o Trade receivables -44 0-00 I4-44
i T 14 L 5
s i 1B £0.00 19.71
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents
{v) Other Bank balance = i 5
{vi) Other Financial Assets 515
(b) Current Tax asset (net) 3 £ =
(¢) Other current assets 16.18 264 18.81
(d) Short term loans and advances 13.58 =13.58 -
Current tax assel (nef) - 117 1.17
Total Current Asscts 63.91 -4.62 59.29
Total Assets 11518 15.19 130.37
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Equity
() Share capital 030 - 030
{b) Other Equity 42.91 -1.54 41.37
Total Equity 4331 184 4167
LIABILITIES
(1) Nen- current liabilities
Financisl lisbilitics
(i) Lease Liabilities - 15.36 15.36
Provisions 0.67 0.67 -
Deffered tax liability (net) 0.96 - 0.96
Total Non- current liabilities L63 14.69 16.32
(1) Current liabilities
() Financial lisbilities » : i
(i) Lease Liabilities 599 599
(0  Trade payables g it
total ding dues of and small
enterprises - 5 &
and small enterprises 423 1547 15.70
(®) Contract liability - krfr 1.7
() Liabilities for current tax (net) - = =
(d) Other current lisbilities %12 3671 041
(e) ! Provision 19.98 -19.98 -
Tatal Current lisbilities 70.33 203 72.37
Total Liabilifies e A =
—
Total Equity and Liabilities 11518 1518 130.36
# Previous GAAP figures have been regrouped to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
(This page has been left intentionally blank)

For DOOK TR.»'?‘-},'ELQ/PVT. LTD.
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Dook Travels Private Limited

CIN: Us3000DL2013PTC262812

Balance Sheet as ai March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

€)

Particulars Amount as per IGAAP # GAAP Adjustmenty/ Prior Period | Amount as per Ind AS
Adjustments =
I Revenue from operations 51838 37270 145.68
n Other Income 7.15 3.38 wm
m Total Income (1+11) 525.52 -376.08 149.45 |
v Expenses
Service cost 449.96 -373.33 76.63
Employee benefits expense 39.51 0.28 923
Depreciation and amortisation expense 069 468 537
Finance Costs = 592 59
Other expenses 24.13 9.45 14.68
Total expenses (IV) 514.29 -372.46 141.83
v Profit before tax (I1I-IV) 11.23 -3.62 762
vi Tax expense:
Current Tax:
Pertaining to profit for the current year 044 140 1.85
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - . =
Defeerred Tax 1.40 =140 -
Total tax expense (VI) 185 - 1.85
v Profit for the year (V+VI) .39 -3.62 577
Vil Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit
or loss
R (l defined benefit plans. - £ &
Income tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified lo -
profit or loss - - .
Total sther comprehensive (loss)/income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year, nef af =
X taxes(VIH-VIID 339 =3.62 577
# Previous GAAP figures have been regroup form to Ind AS for the purpose of this note.
/]
Amount as per IGAAP # GAAP Adjustments/ Prior Period Amount as per Ind AS
Adjustmenis
Balance as at March 31, 2022 Pl
Add: Profit for the i ol o
the year 239 362 sm
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2 5
Balance as at March 31,2023 -
L3 369 437
(This page has been left intentionally blank)
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32

Al

@

(i)

(i)

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employees.

The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employer's contribution to Provident fund and pension schemes 1.95 182
Total 1.95 82
Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity: :

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to
15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2 million. The same is
payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected
unit credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to
build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial
gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The Company has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the respective plans:

Benefit liability
As at As at As at

: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Present value of obligation at beginning of the year - - -
Interest cost - - .
Current service cost 0.49 - -
Past service cost 172
Actuarial (loss)/gain on obligation
- Economic assumptions 2 - .
- Demographic assumptions - - =
- Experience adjustment - - -
Benefits paid (0.09) . :
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 2.12 - -

Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total service cost 222 -
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) = =
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2.22 -

Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 s
T a March 31, 2023
- change in financial assumptions -
- change in demographic assumptions 3 :
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) - -
Fer DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD For DOOK TRAVEL S
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Notes to financial statements for the period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024
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(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Discount rate 7.25% - -
Future salary increase 10.00% - -
Average expected future working life (years) 26.69 “ o
Expected rate of return on plan asset Not applicable
Retirement age (years) 58 Years - -
S R 00% 2012 - = =

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability* ! of IIA‘[)'M (
Withdrawal rate (per annum)

- Up to 30 years 5% - -

- From 31 years to 44 years 3% - -

- From 44 years to 58 years 2% - :

*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.

(v) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Impact of the change in discount rate

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % -0.12 - 5
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.13 & -
Impact of the change in salary increase

a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.04 - -
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.04) - .

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

(vi)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Oto1 Year ; 0.06 g
1t02 Year 0‘05 »
2103 Year 0.04 -
3to4 Year : 0.04 1
4105 Year 0.06 -
51010 Year 1.87 &
P DOOK TRAVELS BYR LT, o o v e s o

W .:. ‘_i
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33 Leases
Company as a Lessee i :
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ using the modified retrospective approach from April 1, 2022.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars L 1948
As at April 1, 2022 4-84
Additions .
Deletions

Depreciation expense (4.68)
As at March 31, 2023 19.64
Additions 5.06
Deletions gig
Depreciation expense 1

As at March 31, 2024 18.82
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total

As at April 1, 2022 19.48
Additions 4.84
Deletions =
Accretion of interest 4.15
Payments (7.13)
As at March 31, 2023 21.34
Additions 5.06
Deletions (1.36)
Accretion of interest 288
Payments 3 (6.33)
As at March 31, 2024 21.59
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at April 1, 2022
Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 17.24 15.36 14.02
Lease Liabilities (Current) 4.36 5.99 5.46
Total 21.60 21.35 19.48

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 15%, with maturity between 2023-2027

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

o For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 4.66 468
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2.88 4.15
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) 0.15 0.32
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7.69 9.15
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities are as follows: As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at April 1, 2022
Within one year 7.12 7.03 6.90
Between 1 and 2 years 6.97 5.74 7.03
Between 2 and 3 years 7.50 5.59 5.74
Between 3 and 4 years 585 6.03 5.59
Between 4 and 5 years 093 4.26 6.03
More than five years ' - i o " . 4.26
Total te o BT , 2ol o iin o B
e » & -
. . .
I \11%

.

e Director

Director
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34 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(U]

(i)

Income tax recognised in profit and loss

Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the year
Total current tax

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Impact of change in tax rate

Total deferred tax

Total tax ised in stat

t of profit and loss

Enll.

iled to the

The Income tax expense for the year can be ing profit as

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Others

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

I tax recognised in other comprehensive i

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Total i tax expense recognised in other

Commitments and

ﬂqunpunydoeamthvemywnﬁwliubﬂiﬁumduhumuﬁhnmuuanh3!,2024,Muﬂ|31,2023andAp:il01,2022.

-

.

i‘or DOOK TRAVE\%S PVT. LTD.
"

Director

_-T?'ortheyaraded For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9.29 1.85
9.29 1.85
(4.70) -
(4.70) B
16 LSS
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
18.00 7.62
26.00% 26.00%
4.68 1.98
(4.68) (1.98)
-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
Director
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36 Related Party Transactions

A. Name of Related parties and related party relationship
Related Parties under Ind AS 24

Holding Company

Key Management Personnel

Easy Trip Planners Limited (w.c.f. 27 September, 2023) *

Director Sandeep Kumar Gupta
Director - Gopal Krishan Kapoor
B. Details of Transactions and Balances with Related parties:
E As at Year ended
EySiceings March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel *
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Gupta 499 4.99
Mr. Gopal Krishan Kapoor 4.99 499
(ii) Tickets, hotels and packages purchased
Easy Trip Planners Limited 2.61 -
EaseMyTrip MiddleEast DMCC 0.04 -
(iii) Tickets, hotels and packages sold
Easy Trip Planners Limited 31 -
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Gupta 0.22 -
Mr. Gopal Krishan Kapoor 0.58 -
(iv) Loans given
Wat Consulting Services Pvt. Ltd. 3.00 14.87
(v) Repayment (of Loan Given above)
Wat Consulting Services Pvt. Ltd. 3.00 -
(vi) Interest Amount
Wat Consulting Services Pvt. Ltd. - 3.02
(vii) Reimbursement expenses
Mr. Gopal Krishan Kapoor 0.04 -

-or DOOK TRAVELS‘FVT. LTD.
Pt

Director

-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

W

Director
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C. Outstanding Balances at the year end:

< As at
S Bitican—"y March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(i) Balance Payable at the year end
Easy Trip Planners Limited 0.43

(ii) Employee benefits payable at the year end
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Gupta

0.54
Mr. Gopal Krishan Kapoor

0.02

221
0.67

* Easy Trip Planners Limited has been acquired 51% sharcholding w.c.f. 02 August, 2023; thereby acquiring the major control over the ent:

i-or DOOK TRAVELS‘PVT. LTD.

L~

Director

-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

W

Director
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37 Segment Information

The Company is engaged in providing Air passage and hotel Packages
mmwmupﬁm-ﬂdhmumm-mm«mﬂncm-.mm P

~ Oporating Scgments.

Fair value measurements

and other allied services in 2 single segment. Based on “Management A)

pproach”, as defined in Ind AS
are, therefore, considered 1o

108 — Operating Scgments, the Chiel Operating Decision
constitute a singl in the context of Ind AS 108

samw.hamh-uy&.urhmumnﬁﬂ-(hw‘-mmmmmmmummwiﬁrmn

Financial Instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instraments by categories as of March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Corrying vk e v
As at As at
Particulars
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022 March 31,2004 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

L_ml nssets

Financiul assets at smortised cost

| Investments (current) 3032 - 488 unxn - 488
| Loan (current) - - 2943 - - 2943
| Trade receivables 3851 444 2m 3851 1444 27
| Cash and cash equivalents 1.6 1971 2398 e 1971 2398
Other Bank balance 0ss - - 0ss - -
Other financial assets (Non-current) 6.62 133 1.01 62| 133 1.01
Total 117.63 3548 62.07 117.63 3548 ﬂ.’TI
|Financisl Habilities.

| Lease Liabilities (current) 436 59 546 4.36) 599 546
Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 17.24 1536 1402 1724 1536 1402
Other financial liabilities ss12 1970 0.19 5512/ 19.70 0.19
Contract liabili 101.30/ N 21.80 10130 3727 21.80
Total 7672 4105 19.68 76,72 41.08 I’..l

The following methods/assumptions were used lo estimate the fir values:

The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafis and other

The fair values of the quoted notcs and b

s estimated by discounting future: cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar tems, credit risk and remaining maturitics. In sddition to b

th

the reporting date. The fair value of unquoted instrumends, loans from banks and

largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

o Sl Eabilition wa will s sthet Snmincial iabiliti

poasible change in the forccast cash flows of the

discount rate, the fair valuc of the equity instruments is also sonsitive to a reasonably possible change in the gr
unobscrvable inputs arc disclosed in the tablcs below. Management regularly assesses a range of P

The fir val wpany's i

¢ to usc unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant

ings and lans

risk 09 at 31 March 2024 was assessed 1o be insignificant.

d by using DCF method

inputs and d

-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT.LTD.

-

Director

their impact on the tolal fair value.

discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance

“or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.

. Director
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39 Fair value hierarchy
Al financial instruments for which Hr!ﬂnﬂhwi.l-d’-ﬂﬂmahpildwﬂilhﬁnﬂnﬂiﬂ!ﬂmdﬂnihduﬁmhwdnmwmhﬂﬁdhiﬁﬁﬂﬂbhﬂﬂumﬂnluﬁ:

Level 1: This level o hierarchy includes financial assots that are measured by reference to quoted (unsdjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or libilities.

Level 2: This level of hicrarchy includes financial h ing inputs, other than jices included within level 1, that are observable for such itoras, directly or indirectly.
Iavdz.Th'-lenid‘hiunellyinduhihn-—-ulﬁqnmwwmmh-mwwphmmwmmhhmManu‘w
market data.

Spexi fic valuation i used to value financial i is di cash flow analysis.

mmmmhﬁmwmd\uc—q—y'smﬂwm

Falr value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024:

Fair value measurement using
P Quoted prices in active Significant
urticulars Total . Significant observable inputs .
(Level 1) (Level2) (Level3)
Financial ussets measured ut fair value
[nvestments at fair valuc through OCI
- Mutual funds 3032 3032 - -
3032 3032 - -
Financial liabilities measured at Fair value
Other financial lisbilities - - - .
Fair for sssets us wt March 31, 2023:
Fuir value measurement using
it : Quated prices in active Significant
Total e Significant observable inputs
(Level 1) (Level2) (Leveld) |
Financial assets measured ai fair value
Investments at fiir value through profit or loss
- Muiusl funds - - = -
liabilities d t Fuir value = < S 3
Other financial liabilities - - - -
Fair value messurement hierarchy for assets as at April 01, 2021:
Fair value measurement
Particulars Quoted prices in active
Total Significant observable inputs. Significant
markel unobservable inputs
el Leeld) Lowld) |
Financial assets messured st fair vaiue
Inrvestments st fair value through profit or loss.
- Mutual funds 488 488 - -
4.88
Finuncia lisbiliies measured at Fair value . = -
Other Mnancial liabilities - -

-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD. or DOCK TRAVELS PVT LTD.

>

Director Director
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40 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
111eCompuny'santiviliesmeaq)osedmvlriﬂyofﬁmncillri:k,Mﬂ,mﬁimmmcmﬁk.ma‘s@rWDw?mh
mamgnwmafd:esemks.mCmpmy’ssmimmmgmmtmmmchpmy‘sﬁmmh]ﬁskmﬁsmgowmdby ppropriate p and procedure and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in d with the Company’s polici mﬁiobjecﬁve&mcmmnﬂwmmh
mmngingmhnfﬂmeriskswbichmsunmriudbebw:

(@) Market Risk
Markaﬁskism:ﬁskﬂmmeﬁh'vﬂmofﬁmncuhﬂowsoflﬁmmﬂinmmuwﬂl” b of ct v‘inmdm
risk:mourstraterisk.mmyﬁskandmhﬂplicerkk.uphneqﬁzypiwrhkmd dity risk. Financial
bomwings.deposﬁs,debtmdequilyhveﬂmﬁ!mddeﬂwﬁwﬁnmciﬂiuﬂmmﬁ.

pﬂm.Mnkﬁriskoompisesﬂnetypesof
affected by market risk include loans and

(i) Interest Rate Risk ; =
hmmer'akislheriskmm&kmuﬁmmushﬂmoflﬁnmiﬂmmﬂﬂmmbmnfchngﬁinmketmmmram.Asmajmtyofthe

ﬁnancialuseumdﬁubﬂiﬁuofﬂnCunpanyar:eiﬂnrmn-i:wcstbﬂringmﬁxadhmburinginsummﬂ,meCuupmy'smtmmmmm:kiimgljghk.

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk : :
Fomigncmmcyﬁskismcriskdutﬂzfnirvalwotﬁmu;hﬁmofmcxpmmwﬂiﬂﬁmﬂbeumeofchmhfmmemhngem&s.“:eﬂcmmmﬂ

ajority of the exp of the Company are denominated in Indian Rupees.
Mamgﬂnﬂnconsidu:cmemyﬁskmbehwmddommthedgeitscmyﬁsk.Aswiaﬁnminfmeimcmmcyexchmsemmmmt. xpected to have a signifi
hnpwtonﬂumsultsofopmﬁom,lmi&vitynmlysisi:mtpresmi

(iii) Equity price risk
Tthmnpany‘slistedmdmn-]imdeqdlymnﬁesmmepﬂbhmmﬂﬂwheﬁsknhhgﬁmmwﬂhﬁunbmﬂhnwhmof&emmﬂﬁmm
CMWMQWWMWMMMWMMmMﬁMMWWM.Repwummtemmyporﬂ'uﬁommbmhwdm
ﬂmCompauy’u:niammgmmawguhrhsis.

A:mempmﬁhgdm,ﬁnexpomwmﬁnedequhymwiﬁesnﬁirnhuwum.mmm.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under  financial i or leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
instruments.

(i) Trade receivables
Tmmumwmmammuwwmcmmmwmmmmmmmmmmu
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Particulars Not Due 0 to 60 days 60 to 120 days 120 to 180 days More than 180 days Total

As at March 31, 2024 - 3595 2.35 0.21 - 38.51
As at March 31, 2024 - - 13.38 - - 1.06 1444
As at April 01, 2022 - 0.05 - - 2.72 277
* The ageing of trade ivables does not include expected credit loss.

(e) Liquidity risk
Wrﬁkmmmmmmmmmkwmhmmmdﬁmwushandooﬂahmlobljgaﬁomwiﬂnminmmhgmﬂslelmm.'nleCompuny's
objecuvei:to,ntaﬂﬂmminﬁainopﬁnmkwkofﬁqnﬂilymmhmhmdwﬂuaﬂuqlﬂm.TMComnycloselymuimﬁuliquidﬂyposiﬁmmddnplayu
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1-5 years More than Total
1 year 5 years
Lease Liabilities 14.09 1.50 5.85 2743
Trade payables 55.12 - - 55.12
Total 74.14 7.50 5.85 87.48
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1-5 years More than Total
= 1 year 5 years
Lease Liabilities ; 1277
Trade payables 19.30
Total e i dei 2 . 32.07
As mm-ito!.lm: : m ; f'-é yurl
oA E o 2 a-ly&'r,-'iu 1 R B s
13.93
(This Spece has been ifilertionally Ieft blank)
- K TRAVELS BVT. LTD. < :
ror DOO ; -or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
/
Director
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41 Capital Management <
For the purpose of Company's capital capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust retumn capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowings, trade and other
payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch31, AsatAprill,

2024 2023 _ 2022
Trade Payables (refer note 17) 3 = =
Other financial lisbilities (refer note 13) - -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 7) (41.63) (19.71) (23.98)
Net debts (41.63) (19.71) (23.98)
Equity share capital (refer note 15) 030 030 030
Other equity (refer note 16) 5432 4137 35.60
Total capital 54.62 41.68 35.90
Capital and net debt 1299 21.97 11.92
Gearing ratio (%) -320.52% -89.73% -201.13%
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or p for i capital during the year ended March 31, 2024, year ended March 31,2023 and year ended March 31, 2022.
(This space has been inientionally lefi blank)
-
b

i-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
<~
/

-or DOOK TRAVELS PVT, LTD.
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42 mﬂﬂ-mmm

Asat Asat

Ratio analysis and its elements Numerator Denominator Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023 *in.:|lu-ndvm

a) __Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.02 0.82 24, INA

Debt-equity ratio Total Debl Shareholder's Equi - - 0. NA

(Loss)/Eamings for debl service Debt service = Interest & 2 i s

() Deb service coverge ralio = Net (loss)/profit after taxcs + |Lease Payments + Principal 436 e iz o] I on mocomm of mm incaass In gt
N B i R available for debt services.
Net sales = Total sales - sales ' Working capital = Current Duc to decrease in current lisbilities and

(d) Net capital tumover ratio 76.55 (11.13)] -TT.77%|. ki

return assets — Current fiabilitics
© Retmonequityatio o Woamiatis st i Sitiilers 027 018 m.vsvjmummnmﬂdwm

() Net profit ratio Net (Loss)/Profit e sales = Total sace s 004 o04|  151%NA
5 : Capital Employed = Tangible
@  Returon capital cmployed a_:"'::"‘“‘m"‘“" Net Worth + Total Debt + 023 021|  s72%dNa
Deferred Tax Liability

lnvmuwernd-.uﬂ:mdntlel-t-vcrnmMuucmlthwvunm:mmuplknbhmumﬂmmdm.

For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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44 Other Statutory Information

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii) The Company did not have any transactions with Companies struck off.
iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with

the understanding that the intermediary shall : :
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or ¢

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
ix) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

x) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.

45 The Company has carried forward losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961. Since, it is not probable that the Company will generate future taxable profits,
there fore deferred tax assets has been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

46 Segment Information
The Company is in the single segment of providing tour services 1o its customers and has a single reportable segment of hotel and packages based on
the nature of the service, the risks and returns, the organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems. The segment results are
regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The directors monitor the operating results of its
business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

47 Non- Cash consideration
Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company is in the business of providing hotels and packages to its customers. These services are
sold both on their own in separate identified contracts with customers and together as a bundled package of services. During the year, the company
has not entered into non-cash consideration arrangements with any of its partners.
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48

49

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notified and the final rules / interpretation have not yet been issued. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect
and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Events after the reporting period
There are no significant events that occurred after the reporting period.
As per our report of even date
For SURI & SUDHIR For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Dook Travels Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 640

g “or DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD. For DOOK TRAVELS PVT. LTD.
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